PAGE  
4

Wes Brickner

800 Oro Terrace

San Pedro, CA  90731-2936

(310) 519-0314

December 11, 2006

Mr. Charles E. James, Sr.

Ms. Patsy Baker Blackshear, Ph.D.

U.S. Department of Labor

Employment Standards Administration

Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs

200 Constitution Avenue, NW, Room C-3310

Washington, D.C.  20210

RE:
YOUR LETTER TO ME DATED NOVEWMBER 1, 2206

Dear Ms. Blackshear and Mr. James:

First, you have failed to respond to any of my allegations, claims and contentions or to any of my FOIA requests over the past seventeen (17) years and you have failed to investigate my “discrimination complaint” and my “noncompliance complaint”.

In addition, you may not consider my complaints, your investigation or this matter to be closed.  There has never been any investigation of my complaints as witnessed by the lack of documentation in any OFCCP file which I have requested under FOIA and which I have yet to receive.  I demand my complaints to remain open as per my rights.

I request an immediate face to face review of my complaints and the OFCCP’s alleged investigation along with the OFCCP’s NORI at the OFCCP’s Los Angeles office.

I have never been notified, by mail or verbally, of the OFCCP’s NORI and I have never been offered the opportunity to review the NORI regarding my complaints as per my rights, as required by the statutes and as required by law.

I wish to review my complete OFCCP file and any NORI conducted by the OFCCP investigators as per my rights under the statutes.

I further request to be sent a “DOJ REFERRAL REQEST FORM” to have my complete OFCCP file and additional documents, which I will provide, to be sent to the DOJ for evaluation of my complaints and for the DOJ to investigate my allegations of the OFCCP’s failure to perform their mandated statutory duties and responsibilities in violation of the statutes of Section 503, VEVRA, APA, Judge Kenyon’s Court Order and other state and federal laws.  

I will now address and successfully refute all of the errors contained in your letter to me, dated November 1, 2006.

I filed my initial “discrimination complaint” against my employer, the Pacific Maritime Association (PMA), with the OFCCP on December 1, 1989; not August 2, 2000.

I filed a “noncompliance complaint” with the OFCCP and the Secretary of Labor, Elaine L. Chao, on November 20, 2002.

These are two distinctly different types of complaints and they are required and mandated by law to be investigated by the OFCCP in two distinctly different manners.

Neither of these complaints have ever been investigated nor addressed by the OFCCP in a proper and legal manner in accordance with the statutes of Section 503 and VEVRA or in accordance with the Federal Contract Compliance Manual (FCCM).

Judge Kenyon found the OFCCP’s investigation of complaints to be “so cursory or wholly unreasonable that the Court should view it as not having been made”.  Judge Kenyon further ruled that the OFCCP’s investigation of complaints was a “sham”.

Judge Kenyon’s Court Order (enclosed), signed on December 15, 1994, is twelve (12) pages long and in those twelve pages Judge Kenyon: 

1) Outlined how the OFCCP erroneously assumed, evaluated and concluded the issue of the OFCCP’s lack of jurisdiction over the PMA; 

2) Found that the PMA is in fact subject to the requirements of Section 503 and VEVRA, including the written AAP requirements of §§ 60-250.5 and 60-741.5; 

3) Ordered the OFCCP to exercise jurisdiction over the PMA pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 793, 38 U.S.C. § 4212 (b) and their implementing regulations; 

4) Pursuant to these statutory sections, as well as 41 C.F.R. §§ 60-250.26 and 60-741.26, to undertake a prompt and reasonable investigation of PMA’s compliance with the written AAP requirements of 41 C.F.R. §§ 60-250.5 and 60-741.5 (This investigation, including any national office review, must be completed in a reasonable amount of time); and 

5) Within sixty (60) days of the date of the Order, and every sixty (60) days thereafter until the issue of PMA’s compliance with the aforementioned written AAP requirements is resolved, to serve on Plaintiffs and the Court a report indicating the steps the OFCCP have taken, and the steps the OFCCP is planning to take, to fulfill their enforcement responsibilities under Section 503 and VEVRA implementing regulations.

Judge Kenyon’s Court Order is the OFCCP’s judicial notice of their jurisdiction over the PMA and cannot be circumvented by the Solicitor’s office.

The DOL-OFCCP and the DOL-Solicitor’s office are of the executive branch of government.  Federal Court Judge Kenyon is of the judicial branch of government.  The legislative branch of government adopts the laws.  The executive branch of government enforces the laws.  The judicial branch defines, interprets and rules on the legality of those laws and on the jurisdictional aspects of those laws.

Therefore, how can the OFCCP and the Solicitor’s office disregard Judge Kenyon’s interpretation of the law, his findings of facts and conclusions of law and his federal court ruling and Court Order regarding the OFCCP’s jurisdiction over the PMA and the PMA’s legal responsibility to comply with the statutes of Section 503 and VEVRA as ordered?

They cannot legally!

Why did the OFCCP and the Solicitor’s office take ten (10) years to investigate the PMA’s compliance with the written AAP requirements; focusing intentionally and erroneously on the issue of the OFCCP’s jurisdiction over the PMA when Judge Kenyon had already established the OFCCP’s jurisdiction over the PMA?  Ten (10) years is not “a reasonable amount of time” as ordered by Judge Kenyon in his Court Order. 

Why did the OFCCP and the Solicitor’s office stop sending reports to the Plaintiffs and the Court every sixty (60) days as ordered by Judge Kenyon in violation of the Court Order?  The reports the OFCCP and the Solicitor’s office did send were redundant and only demonstrated the lack of effort the OFCCP and the Solicitor’s office were making to comply with the Court Order to enforce PMA’s compliance with Section 503 and VEVRA. 

The OFCCP continues to claim erroneously and in violation of Judge Kenyon’s Court order and the law that they have no jurisdiction over the PMA.

In your letter you continue this fiction.  

You claim PMA has no current Federal Government contract.  You are wrong!  

Your investigation - as to whether PMA has a Federal Government contract - is just as Judge Kenyon found and ruled in his Court Order regarding the OFCCP’s investigation of PMA’s compliance with Section 503 and VEVRA; to be “so cursory or wholly unreasonable that the Court should view it as not having been made” and a “sham”. 

The PMA has had, over the decades, a contract with the Department of Transportation, Maritime Administration (MARAD) to utilize the USNS Curtiss (T-AVB4) for training in the PMA “Winch Driver Training Program” for their PMA longshore employees.

The USNS Curtiss, a Ready Reserve Fleet vessel home ported in Port Hueneme, has been used and is still in use to this day by the PMA in training their employees for “yard and stay”, “swinging boom” and “jumbo” hands-on training.  According to PMA’s Annual Reports (enclosed) rooms on board the USNS Curtiss have provided space for classroom instruction and rigging demonstrations as well.  

The PMA has used Port Hueneme and their MARAD ships over the decades to train their employees in the PMA “Winch Driver Training Program”. 

Why was the OFCCP unaware of this fact?  The OFCCP was unaware because they made no significant inquiries and whatever inquiries they did make they were “so cursory, so wholly unreasonable and a sham”, as usual.  

With all of the OFCCP’s resources and their mandated investigative power as a government agency, how could the OFCCP not find out about the PMA’s longstanding contract for their “Winch Driver Training Program” with DOT-MARAD at Port Hueneme? 

It was common knowledge and known to all on the waterfront in the Ports of Southern California; how could the OFCCP not know?  What about the PMA “Winch Driver Training Programs” in Northern California, Oregon, Washington, Alaska and Hawaii or the East Coast or the Gulf Ports or any other area where the PMA does business?

I find it hard to believe that the OFCCP’s lack of effort was unintentional.

The fact that PMA does have a Federal Government contract is irrelevant as Judge Kenyon has already ruled that the PMA is in fact subject to the requirements of Section 503 and VEVRA and therefore; the OFCCP does indeed have jurisdiction.

However, if the OFCCP continues to ignore Judge Kenyon’s Court Order, in violation of the law, the OFCCP can hardly refuse to recognize and ignore the fact that the PMA is a qualified Federal Contractor, according to the definition of a Federal Contractor under the laws the OFCCP administers, as well as, by PMA’s own admission, by having, for decades, a Federal Government contract with the DOT-MARAD at Port Hueneme for their longshore employees “Winch Driver Training Program”.

The OFCCP should also consider and investigate if there are any other contracts, Memorandums of Understanding (MOU) or any other agreements, consideration or services the Federal Government may be providing the PMA, specifically, in regards to the PMA’s federally mandated “Health and Safety Training Programs”, “Diversity Programs” and the newly mandated Transportation Security Administration’s “TWIC” security card identification program; which would be evidence that PMA does have additional Federal Government contracts and/or assistance.

I request, once again, under the FOIA to have the following documents provided to me:

1) My complete OFCCP file;

2) Charles J. Fairchild’s complete OFCCP file;

3) A complete copy of all documents in the Fairchild v. Robert Reich, Sec. of Labor, et. al., CV 92-5765 Kn case;

4) Any and all documents which pertain to my complaints, and any other person’s complaints, against the PMA; 

5) The Solicitor’s analysis and opinion regarding the relationship between the PMA and its member companies as referred to in the OFCCP’s Regional Director, M. J. Villarreal’s letter dated August 6, 1990 (enclosed); and 

6) The Solicitor’s analysis and opinion regarding the OFCCP’s jurisdiction over the PMA regarding my complaints in all of the OFCCP’s subsequent letters to me which state that my case was being referred back to the Solicitor’s office and to the OFCCP’s National office for analysis, review and evaluation.   

In conclusion, you can trust that you have not addressed any or all of my concerns and you may not consider your investigation into my “discrimination complaint” and my “noncompliance complaint” or this matter to be closed!

An expeditious response to this letter, to all of my requests in my previous letters and to all of my FOIA requests; is required by law.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

Wes Brickner, VRA

cc:
Elaine L. Chao, Secretary of Labor


Veterans’ Rights Advocates
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